
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
Page 1  

Town of Mineral Springs  

Mineral Springs Town Hall 

3506 Potter Road S ~ Mineral Springs 

Mineral Springs Town Council 

Legislative Public Hearing / Regular Meeting  

August 8, 2024 ~ 7:30 P.M. 

AGENDA 

 
 

1. Opening  
 

The meeting will be called to order, an invocation will be delivered, and the Pledge of 
Allegiance will be recited.    

 
2. Legislative Public Hearing – Proposed Rezoning of Tax Parcel #06-019-002 
 
3. Public Comments 

 

The town council will hear comments from members of the public on any matters of interest 
to them during this ten-minute period.  
 

4. Consent Agenda – Action Item 
 

A. Approval of the July 11, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 
B. Acceptance of the June 2024 Union County Tax Report  
C. Acceptance of the June 2024 Finance Report 
 

5. Consideration of the Proposed Rezoning of Tax Parcel #06-019-002 from RA20 
to General Business (GB) and Adopting Ordinance-2024-01 – Action Item 

 

The council will consider approval/denial of a proposed map amendment, which was the 
subject of a legislative public hearing.  The council will consider adopting O-2024-01. 

 
6. Consideration of the Landscaping Bids Opened on July 30, 2024 – Action Item 

 

The council will review the landscaping bids opened on July 30, 2024 and will consider 
granting a contract to one of the bidders. 

 
7. Consideration of the 2023-2024 Audit Contract – Action Item 

 

The council will consider approving the audit contract for the 2023-2024 fiscal year.     
  
8. Consideration of Approving a Town Engineer Agreement – Action Item 

 

The council will consider approving an agreement with Rosenau Engineering to serve as 
the town engineer on projects that require engineering services. 

 
9. Staff Reports   

 The staff will update the council on any developments that may affect the town. 
 

10. Other Business 
 
11. Adjournment 

 



 

  

 

 

MEMO 
 

To: Town Council 
From: Vicky Brooks 
Date: August 1, 2024 
 Agenda Item 2  Legislative Public Hearing – Proposed Rezoning of Tax Parcel 
    #06-019-002 
 
                                                
All required notifications/postings/mailings required by the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance 
and North Carolina General Statutes have been met for this Legislative Public Hearing on the 
proposed rezoning of Tax Parcel #06-019-002 from RA20 to GB.  
 
All documents are located under Agenda Item # 5.  
 
 

 
 
 

Town of Mineral Springs  
Town Clerk / Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks 
P O Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
704-289-5331 
704-243-1705 FAX 
msvickybrooks@aol.com 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 



 

July 11, 2024 - DRAFT  Minutes Book 26 Page | 1 

 

Draft Minutes of the  
Mineral Springs Town Council  

Regular Meeting  
July 11, 2024 – 7:30 p.m.  

 
The Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, met in Regular Session at the Mineral 
Springs Town Hall located at 3506 Potter Road S, Mineral Springs, North Carolina, at 7:30 p.m. on 
Thursday, July 11, 2024. 
 
Present: Mayor Frederick Becker III, Mayor Pro Tem Valerie Coffey, Councilman Jerry 

Countryman, Councilwoman Janet Critz, Councilwoman Lundeen Cureton, and 
Councilman Jim Muller.  

 
Absent: Councilwoman Bettylyn Krafft and Attorney Bobby Griffin.   
 
Staff Present: Town Clerk/Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks and Administrative Assistant/Deputy 

Town Clerk Sharelle Quick.  
 
Visitors: Todd Elmore. 
 
1. Opening 

With a quorum present at 7:31 p.m. on July 11, 2024, Mayor Becker called the regular meeting to 
order.  

 Councilwoman Cureton delivered the invocation. 

 Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Public Comments 

Todd Elmore – 102 N Jackson Street, Waxhaw.  

3. Consent Agenda – Action Item 

A correction was noted to the June 13, 2024 minutes on page 80, paragraph 3 – delete “Coffey” 
from the aye vote. 

Councilwoman Coffey motioned to approve the consent agenda containing the June 13, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes as amended, the May 2024 Union County Tax Report, and the May 2024 
Finance Report as presented, and Councilwoman Cureton seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, and Muller.  Nays: None. 

4. Other Business 

There was no other business 

5. Adjournment – Action Item 

 At 7:36 p.m. Councilwoman Critz motioned to adjourn the meeting and Councilwoman Coffey 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, and Muller.  
Nays: None. 

 The next regular meeting will be on Thursday, August 8, 2024 at 7:30 p.m. at the Mineral Springs 
Town Hall.  

Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 

             
  Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk  Frederick Becker, Mayor    



msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Agenda Item 

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
#4B

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
8/8/2024

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Line

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Rectangle













































































 

  

 

 

MEMO 
 

To: Town Council 
From: Vicky Brooks 
Date: August 1, 2024 
Agenda Item 5 Consideration of the Proposed Rezoning of Tax Parcel #06-019-002 from RA20 

to General Business (GB) and Adopting Ordinance-2024-01 
                                                
Included on the following pages is: 
 

1. Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA24-02) Application for Rezoning Tax Parcel #06-019-002 from 
RA20 to General Business (GB). 

2. A snippet of the Mineral Springs Official Zoning Map locating Tax Parcel #06-019-002 
highlighting the subject property with a crosshatch.  

3. Certification of Mail Notification. 

4. Statement of Consistency/Inconsistency and Reasonableness – DRAFT. 

5. Ordinance 2024-01 Amending the Mineral Springs Official Zoning Map if the council chooses 
to approve the proposed rezoning.  

 
 
 

 
 
 

Town of Mineral Springs  
Town Clerk / Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks 
P O Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
704-289-5331 
704-243-1705 FAX 
msvickybrooks@aol.com 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 

















 

 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY/INCONSISTENCY  

AND REASONABLENESS  
 

Mineral Springs Development Ordinance   
Map Amendment 

 
In reference to the proposed map amendment from RA20 to General Business (GB) to 
the property located at 6020 Waxhaw Highway on Tax Parcel #06-019-002. 

The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares the proposed map amendment is 
“consistent” with the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan adopted May 12, 2022 
based on: 
 

1. The Community Vision for the Future is to have more retail, businesses, and 
shopping. 

 
The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares that the proposed map amendment 
is “inconsistent” with the Mineral Springs Future Land Use Map, which calls for this 
property to be zoned Town Center (TC) in the future.  The Mineral Springs Town 
Council acknowledges that the Future Land Use Map will automatically be amended 
with the passage of the proposed map amendment. 
 
The Mineral Springs Town Council finds the proposed map amendment to be 
“reasonable” based on: 
 

1. The property is adjoined by GB and the railroad tracks.   
 
ADOPTED by the Mineral Springs Town Council on this the 8th day of August, 2024. 

 

              
 Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 

 

Attest: 

 

       
Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 



 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE TOWN OF 
MINERAL SPRINGS AS ESTABLISHED BY THE MINERAL SPRINGS 

DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE DATED JULY 12, 2019 
O-2024-01 

 
WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Planning Board has recommended to the Mineral Springs 
Town Council that Tax Parcel #06-019-002 (Deed Book 3888, Deed Page 206 found in the 
Union County Register of Deeds) located at 6020 Waxhaw Highway be re-classified from 
RA20 to General Business (GB); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NC General Statutes 160D, Article 6 and Article 3, Section 3.9 of 
the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance, the Mineral Springs Town Council may amend 
the Official Zoning Map after holding a legislative public hearing and after the Mineral 
Springs Planning Board has had the opportunity to review, comment, and make a 
recommendation to the Town Council regarding the map amendment as well as whether the 
same is consistent with any comprehensive plan that has been adopted and any other 
officially adopted plan that is applicable; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Planning Board reviewed the proposed map amendment at 
a regular meeting on July 23, 2024, held in accordance with law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Planning Board recommended in a vote of 6 to 0 on July 
23, 2024, that the Mineral Springs Town Council amend the Official Zoning Map based on 
the Community Vision for the Future was to have more retail, businesses, and shopping as 
stated in the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with NC General Statute 160D-601 and the provisions set forth 
in Article 3, Section 3.9.1, Steps 5 and 6 of the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance, 
the Town Council duly advertised and held a public legislative hearing to consider the 
proposed map amendment; and 
 
WHEREAS, after reviewing the written recommendation from the Mineral Springs Planning 
Board on the proposed map amendment, conducting a legislative public hearing on August 
8, 2024, and careful review, the Town Council determines that: 
 

1. The map amendment to the Official Zoning Map identifies with the results of town 
survey conducted prior to the adoption of the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan, 
which indicated the community vision was to have more retail, businesses, and 
shopping in the future, which makes the map amendment consistent with the Mineral 
Springs Comprehensive Plan; and 
 

2. The map amendment to the Official Zoning Map has also been found to be 
inconsistent with the Mineral Springs Future Land Use Map shown in the Mineral 
Springs Comprehensive Plan; and 
 



 

 

 
3. The Town Council acknowledges the map amendment adopted has the effect of also 

amending the Future Land Use Map without an additional request or application for a 
plan amendment per NC General Statute 160D-605(a). 
 

4. The Town Council finds the map amendment to be reasonable because Tax Parcel 
#06-019-002 adjoins property that is currently zoned GB on the east side, and it abuts 
the railroad tracks on the north side.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF MINERAL 
SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA THAT: 
 
Section 1. The Official Zoning Map established by the Mineral Springs Development 

Ordinance effective July 12, 2019, and as subsequently amended, is hereby 
amended to rezone Tax Parcel #06-019-002 consisting of 0.35 acre located at 
6020 Waxhaw Highway, and more specifically shown on the attached Exhibit 
A, from RA20 zoning.  Said property shall now be zoned GB (General 
Business).  

 
Section 2. The Zoning Administrator for the Town of Mineral Springs is hereby authorized 

and directed to have said changes made upon the Official Zoning Map of the 
Town of Mineral Springs and to consequently to have said changes made upon 
the Future Land Use Map without further requests or applications for plan 
amendments; and 

 
Section 3. This map amendment to the Official Zoning Map of the Town of Mineral 

Springs is effective upon adoption. 
 
ADOPTED this 8th day of August, 2024. 
 
 
 

              
       Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
 
        
Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 

 

MEMO 
 

To: Town Council 
From: Vicky Brooks 
Date: July 30, 2024 
Agenda Item 6  Consideration of the Landscaping Bids Opened on July 30, 2024 
                                                
Included on the following pages is: 
 

1. The original Request for Proposal 
2. A bid from Blackmon’s Landscaping, LLC 
3. A bid from Carolina Lawn Care 

 
 
 

 
 

Landscaping Bid Tab 

Name Monthly Fee Base Bid 

Blackmon’s Landscaping, LLC $1,400.00  $16,800.00 * 

Carolina Lawn Care $1,446.00  $17,352.00 * 

 
*  Additional fees will be charged for pine needle applications twice yearly. 

Town of Mineral Springs  
Town Clerk / Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks 
P O Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
704-289-5331 
704-243-1705 FAX 
msvickybrooks@aol.com 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 



 

Page 1 of 5 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
FOR 

Town of Mineral Springs 
3506 South Potter Road 

Town Hall Landscaping and Maintenance 
Tax Parcels #06-039-002A & #06-039-002B 

Mineral Springs, North Carolina 
 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
Please see attached document: 
 
“Scope of Work for Mineral Springs Town Hall” 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
 
Sealed proposals for this work will be received by: 
 
Vicky Brooks 
Town Administrator/Zoning Administrator 
Town of Mineral Springs 
3506 South Potter Road 
P. O. Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
Phone: (704) 243-0505 x 221 ~ Fax: (704) 243-1705 
 
up to 2:00 p.m., on Tuesday, July 30, 2024 and immediately thereafter will be publicly opened 
and read aloud. 
 
Contractors are hereby notified that they must provide Public Liability and Property Damage 
Insurance in an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) general aggregate.  
Certificate of Insurance shall be provided to the town with the bid.  Contractors are also 
required to maintain a pesticide license and post signage when applying herbicides or 
pesticides to lawn areas.  Contractors shall submit references with the bid. 

Please note on the envelope – Bid Proposal: 

Attn: Vicky Brooks 
Mineral Springs Town Hall Landscaping and Maintenance Bid 

(July 30, 2024) 
(Contractor Name) 

 
All bidders must attend a mandatory pre-bid site visit and inspection at the Mineral Springs 
Town Hall at 2:00 p.m. on Monday, July 22, 2024 prior to submitting proposals. 



 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 

For the Mineral Springs Town Hall 

The Town of Mineral Springs is soliciting bids for general landscaping and maintenance of the 
Mineral Springs Town Hall site at 3506 South Potter Road.  All labor and equipment necessary 
to perform the work required for the maintenance of groundcovers, annuals, perennials, shrubs 
and trees shall be provided by the contractor and shall form the basis of the monthly bid price. 
Materials consumed in the course of normal maintenance, including but not limited to leaf and 
debris bags, herbicides and pesticides for spot treatments, and fuel for equipment shall be 
included in this amount.    This maintenance shall include, but not be limited to application of 
fertilizers, herbicides and pesticides, pruning, weeding, replacement plantings (as approved by 
the Town), loose trash removal, leaf removal, repair and maintenance, spring and fall cleanup. 

All additional materials described herein, such as grass seed, plant material, fertilizers, mulch, 
lime, and other consumables shall be payable monthly in addition to the bid price based upon 
presentation of actual invoices. 

Areas to be covered: 

 Approximately 90,000 square feet of lawn area. 

 A minimum of three tree areas. 

 Town Hall sign landscaping area. 

 One parking lot tree landscaping area. 

I. LANDSCAPING AND MAINTENANCE: 
 

A. Mowing  
1. Lawn shall be mowed weekly during the growing season and as required during 

the winter months.  Minimum of 40 mowings (8 months weekly – 4 months bi-
weekly). 

2. The height of cutting shall be maintained consistently to prevent scalping or 
burn.  The mowing height shall be appropriate to the turf species. 

3. Excessive grass clippings shall be collected and disposed of; adjacent sidewalks 
and streets shall be clean of clippings. 

4. Mowing patterns shall be alternated each week to avoid creating ruts and 
compaction.  
 

B. Edging 
1. All lawn edges along sidewalks and curbs shall be edged before each mowing 

during the active growing season (March through October) and as required for 
appearance for the remainder of the year. 

2. Edging shall be performed with a blade type mechanical edger at least once a 
month; a monofilament line trimmer may be used at all other times on a weekly 
basis. 



 

Page 3 of 5 

 

3. A monofilament line trimmer shall be used to trim around obstacles within the 
lawn area.  Care shall be taken to insure that the bark of trees and shrubs are not 
damaged or stripped by the line trimmer. 

4. Areas where the grass meets buildings, planters and other vertical surfaces shall 
be trimmed in a manner to maintain a clean and even meeting point.  Herbicides 
may not be used as a substitute for proper trimming. 

5. Edging and trimming is not required around natural un-mulched wooded areas 
or property boundaries.  Three (3) park trash cans need bags changed out each 
visit. (Town will provide trash bags and dumpster / disposal onsite). 
  

C. Debris Removal 
1. Litter and trash (including leaves, rubbish, paper, bottles, cans, rocks, gravel, 

pine cones, sticks), and other debris shall be removed from all areas on a weekly 
basis. 

2. All refuse resulting from the maintenance operation of properties shall be 
disposed of by the contractor. 

3. Hardscape (i.e. sidewalks, driveways, paved surfaces) shall be swept or blown off 
with a power blower to keep the grounds free of debris on a weekly basis during 
the growing season.  During winter months all grounds shall be policed 
periodically for trash and debris and blown clear.  

4. Paved surfaces and sidewalks shall be weeded as often as necessary to 
discourage unsightly weed growth.  This control shall be accomplished through 
the selective use of herbicides and mechanical means.   

 
D. Fertilization, Aeration and Reseeding 

1. Conduct annual soil tests of representative lawn areas within the first month of 
the contract. 

2. Apply fertilizer and lime, with type, quantity and frequency determined by soil 
test results. 

3. Aerate and seed in the fall (between September 1 and October 31). 
4. Maintained turf to be fertilized 4 times per year. 

 
E. Weed Control 

1. A pre-emergent shall be applied based on season and targeted weeds. 
2. All areas shall be kept free of weeds.  Chemical and/or mechanical means may 

be used as appropriate.  If any weeding is not performed, maintenance will be 
considered unsatisfactory. 

3. Before applying herbicides, the type of weed shall be identified and the control 
selected accordingly, using the most effective control for the species, the 
location and the season. 

4. Weeds shall not be allowed to grow in paved areas such as driveways, walks, 
curbs, gutters, etc.  Weeds may be removed manually or sprayed with an 
herbicide.  Dead weeds shall be removed from the paved and mulched areas.  

5. No pesticides are to be used in planted landscape beds.  Weed maintenance in 
these areas will require hand pulling each visit.  
 



 

Page 4 of 5 

 

F. Pesticides 
1. Shall be applied as necessary. 
2. Apply ant control annually.  One (1) blanket application of service area in the 

spring each year.  Spot treatment throughout the remainder of the mowing 
season. 
 
 

G. Shrubs & Pine Needles 
1. Pruning of shrubs shall be done twice a year to maintain growth within space 

limitations, to maintain or enhance the natural growth habit, or to eliminate 
diseased or damaged growth. 

2. Mulching of the shrub and tree beds shall be maintained with fresh pine needles 
in the spring and fall season.  Shrub and tree beds shall be kept weed free.  
Weed control will be accomplished with herbicides when possible and by hand 
pulling when danger to desirable plant material may exist.   

3. Shrubbery should be fertilized in the spring season as needed, unless otherwise 
agreed to. 

4. If mulch is more than 4” in beds, top layer should be removed before new mulch 
is added to prevent over mulching.  Beds should not contain more than 4” of 
mulch.  Mulch shall not be applied to plant stems.  Root flare should be visible on 
all plants. 

5. Two (2) Pine needle applications per year, spring and fall.  Town needs to 
approve the dates of each application prior to work being performed. 
 

H. Replacement Plantings 
1. The Contractor shall report to the Town any perennial plant material not 

exhibiting normal growth and vigor.  If it has been determined that the material 
is beyond reviving, a written report recommending replacement shall be given to 
the Town Administrator.  This report shall include: (a) Identify the location, size 
and type of plant; (b) Identify the reason for the decline; (c) Cost of replacement.  
No replacement plantings are to be done without consent of the Town with the 
exception of annual ornamental plants and flowers. 

2. Annual flowers appropriate to the season shall be planted in front of the town 
hall sign during the months of April and October. 

 
 

  



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

PROPOSAL AND CONTRACT 
for  

 

Mineral Springs Town Hall Landscaping and Maintenance 
 

Mineral Springs, NC 
 

The undersigned, as bidder, proposes and agrees if this proposal is accepted to contract with 
the Town of Mineral Springs to furnish all materials, equipment, and labor necessary for the 
ongoing for landscaping and maintenance as described in these documents to the full and 
entire satisfaction of the Town of Mineral Springs for the monthly sum of: 
 
BASE BID:       Dollars $         per month  
 
Respectfully submitted this     day of    20  
 
              
          (Contractor) 
 
Federal ID#      By:       
 
Witness:      Title:       
                 
 

       Address:      
(Proprietorship or Partnership) 

              
 
Attest:  (Corporation)     Email:       
 
 
 (Corporate Seal) 
 
By:          License#:   
 
Title:       
             (Corporation Secretary/Ass’t Secretary) 
 

 

ACCEPTED by the TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 

BY: Vicky Brooks     TITLE:     Town Administrator  

SIGNED:      DATE:      

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required  
by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 

     
Finance Officer  Date 





























 7845 Colony Road, Suite C4-3300 
Charlotte, NC  28226 

Tel:  704.996.0764 
www.KG-CPA.com 

Email: kendra.gangal@kg-cpa.com 

July 31, 2024 

To the Town Council and Management 
Town of Mineral Springs 
PO Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 

I am pleased to confirm my understanding of the services I am to provide the Town of Mineral Springs for the year ended 
June 30, 2024.  

Audit Scope and Objectives 

I will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information, including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial 
statements, of the Town of Mineral Springs as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024.  Accounting standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as 

Town of Mineral Springs
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of my engagement, I will apply certain limited procedures 
to the Town of Mineral Springs
America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consisten
statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I will not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles 
and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:  

1)  

I have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies the Town of Mineral 
Springs
my audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, and I will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole in a report combined with our 

: 

1) Combining and individual fund statements. 

2) Budgetary schedules. 

3) Ad valorem tax schedules. 

The objective of my audit is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles and to report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph 
when considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements, including 

Agenda Item

#7
8/8/2024



omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or 
in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements.  The 
objectives also include reporting on: 

 Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and aware 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards. 

 

I will conduct my audit in accordance with GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of accounting records, and other 
procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions.  As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS
and Government Auditing Standards, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. 

I will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management.  I will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. I will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) 
misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts 
by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, 
Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because I will 
not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or 
noncompliance may not be detected by me, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to 
detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements or on major programs. However, I will inform the appropriate level of management of any 
material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to my attention.  I will also inform 
the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to my attention, unless 
clearly inconsequential.  My responsibility as auditor is limited to the period covered by my audit and does not extend to any 
later periods for which I am not engaged as auditor. 

I will also conclude, based n the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in the 

of time. 

My procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and may 
include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and 
liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. I may request 
written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. 

Audit Procedures Internal Control 

I will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control relevant to the audit, sufficient 
to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.  Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant
to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting 
misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements.  Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal 
control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issues pursuant to Government 
Auditing Standards. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, I will communicate to management 
and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA 
professional standards, Government Audit Standards. 

Audit Procedures Compliance 



As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, I will 
perform tests of the Town of Mineral Springs
agreements. However, the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and I will 
not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

Other Services  

I will also assist in preparing the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards, and related 
notes of the Town of Mineral Springs in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information 
provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such 
services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. I will perform the services in accordance 
with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial statements, and related notes services 
previously defined. I, in my sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any 
action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are 
met; following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly 
reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting 
principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all accompanying information in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and 
the provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the accuracy 
and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which 
you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, (2) additional information 
that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom 
we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to me in 
the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by me during the 
current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to 
the financial statements taken as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for 
informing me about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) employees who 
have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. Your responsibilities include informing me of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud 
affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees, regulators, or others. In addition, 
you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 
agreements, and grants. You are also responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and 
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we report.   

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged to report on, in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include my report on the supplementary 
information in any document that contains and indicates that I have reported on the supplementary information. You also 
agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes my 
report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to me in the representation letter that (1) you are responsible 
for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, 
including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation 
have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you 
have disclosed to me any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the 
supplementary information.  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial audits, 
attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Scope and 
Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant 
findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. 



well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes and any other 
nonaudit services I provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter my assistance 
with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial 
statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee
the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or 
experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 

I may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your account. I 
may share confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain committed to maintaining the 
confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, I maintain internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to 
protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, I will secure confidentiality agreements with all service 
providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and I will take reasonable precautions to determine that they 
have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. In the 
event that I am unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior 
to the sharing of your confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, I will remain responsible 
for the work provided by any such third-party service providers. 

I understand that your employees will locate any documents selected by me for testing. 

I expect to begin my audit in August/September 2024 and to issue my reports no later than October 31, 2024. Kendra 
Gangal is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the reports or authorizing 
another individual to sign them.  My fee for these services will be at my standard hourly rates including out-of-pocket costs 
(such as report reproduction, word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that I agree that my gross 
fee, including expenses, will not exceed $5,230.  My standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility 
involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit.  

My invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation.  If I elect to 
terminate my services for nonpayment, my engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification 
of termination, even if I have not completed my reports. You will be obligated to compensate me for all time expended and 
to reimburse me for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated 
cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the 
audit. If significant additional time is necessary, I will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before I incur the 
additional costs. 

Reporting 

I will issue a written report upon completion of my audit of the Town of Mineral Springs
will be addressed to Council and Management of the Town of Mineral Springs.  Circumstances may arise in which our report 
may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit.  Depending on the nature of these 
circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinion, add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or 
other-matter paragraph to our auditors report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement.  If my opinion is other than 
unmodified, I will discuss the reasons with you in advance.  If, for any reason, I am unable to complete the audit or are 
unable to form or have not formed an opinion, I may decline to express an opinion or issue reports, or I may withdraw from 
this engagement.  

I will also provide a report (which does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial statements and 
compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have 
a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government Auditing Standards.  The report on internal control 
and on compliance and other matters will state that 1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of 
internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Government Auditing Standards 
the report is not suitable for any other purpose.  If during my audit I become aware that the Town of Mineral Springs is 
subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, I will communicate to management 
and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or 
contractual requirements.  



I appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Town of Mineral Springs and believe this letter accurately summarizes 
the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let me know. If you agree with the terms of our 
engagement as described in this letter, please sign, and return it to me. 

Very truly yours, 

Kendra Gangal, CPA 

Kendra J. Gangal, CPA 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Town of Mineral Springs. 

Governance signature:    

Title:    

Date:    





















 

  

 

 

MEMO 
 

To: Town Council 
From: Vicky Brooks 
Date: July 31, 2024 
Agenda Item 8  Consideration of Approving a Town Engineer Agreement 
                                                
 
Attached is an agreement submitted by Rosenau Engineering to serve as the town engineer to assist 
with projects in the town that require engineering reviews. 
 
This agreement was submitted to Attorney Bobby Griffin for review.  Attorney Griffin made the 
following comments:  
 
That is a standard type of agreement prepared by the Engineer professionals, and everything is 
protective of its members, of course.  Even so, I don’t see anything hideous about it except for the 
these following cautions:  

1. Be certain you can cancel at anytime without cause for any reason.  I think it states now “For 
convenience” and that’s probably sufficient although I would have preferred language like first 
sentence in this paragraph. 

2. Note 5.01 3: 

a. 5.01 3F; Seems to me that if TOMS pays for a document, report, etc. it should be able to have 
a copy for its records, future review, etc. 

b. 501 3H: I recommend that be deleted in its entirety 
    
 
In response to Attorney Grifin’s comments, Mr. Jonathan Rosenau of Rosenau Engineering explained: 

1. Convenience essentially means that the Owner (Town of Mineral Springs) can cancel the contract 
at any time because you want to do so.  The Town would simply need to provide Rosenau 
Engineering with written notice and pay all outstanding invoices and any time expended that may 
not yet have been invoiced.  Some potential examples (maybe a bit extreme/harsh) include: 

a. Rosenau Engineering does not respond to the Town's email request within 2 days and Town 
feels that response should have been quicker. 

b. Or, a retired Civil Engineer living in Mineral Springs wants to donate their time to the Town. It 
may be in the Town's best interests financially to cancel the Rosenau Engineering contract for 
convenience and utilize the engineer's donated time. 

Town of Mineral Springs  
Town Clerk / Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks 
P O Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
704-289-5331 
704-243-1705 FAX 
msvickybrooks@aol.com 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 



c. Town hires a full or part time engineer and no longer needs external consulting services. The 
Rosenau Engineering contract can be canceled for convenience. 

2. The Town has the right to utilize any documents prepared by Rosenau Engineering for the 
intended use of those documents.  This language is important to protect Rosenau Engineering 
from documents created being used elsewhere without our permission, control or compensation. 
This applies most often to design projects in which we may develop specific details for a project. 
This language also helps the Town because it allows Rosenau Engineering to utilize items/details 
that may have been developed by us during previous projects. 

3. The limitation of damages clause.  This is standard language in the industry standard contract 
which we utilize.  It has been developed and vetted by the National Society of Professional 
Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies and American Society of Civil Engineers. 
Please keep in mind that this liability limitation does authorize up to $100,000. We have never had 
to test this clause in litigation.  As a Civil Engineering Consulting firm, our services are limited to 
consultations, plan reviews, design drawings and similar services.  It is possible that a design error 
results in millions of dollars of damages, but thankfully this has never been the case for us.  We do 
have Professional Liability Insurance to cover these events if they occur.  Currently, our services 
are limited to the review of a small commercial plan set with our compensation under $5,000.  We 
are serving as an extension of the Town's staff in place of a full-time Town Engineer.  If a member 
of the Town staff made a mistake resulting in damages, the staff member would not be held liable 
for the damages.  At least with this arrangement, Rosenau Engineering may be able to contribute 
up to $100,000 towards damages if needed. 

Attorney Griffin responded to Mr. Rosenau’s explanation as follows: 

1. Number 1 is okay 

2. Questioned if the language provides that the town may own and use the documents for the 
intended use of documents. 

3. With respect to Item #3, can’t the standard limitation clause just be eliminated. 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 1 

SHORT FORM OF AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of July 10, 2024 (“Effective Date”) between Town of Mineral Springs 
(“Owner”) and Rosenau Engineering, PLLC, a North Carolina Professional Limited Liability Company 
(“Engineer”). 
 
Owner’s Project, of which Engineer’s services under this Agreement are a part, is generally identified as 
follows: Town of Mineral Springs – Town Engineer Consulting Services (“Project”). 
 
Engineer’s services under this Agreement are generally identified as follows: Engineer shall provide  
Civil Engineering Consulting Services as needed by the Town of Mineral Springs located in Union County, 
North Carolina.  
 
Civil Engineering Consulting Services may include the following: 
 

1. Construction Document and Permit Reviews for projects submitted to Town for approval. This 

would likely include: 

a. Review of documents submitted by applicant 

b. Review Town regulations 

c. Provide Town and Applicant with feedback/markups/comments based upon Town 

regulations 

2. Provide guidance to Town regarding land development. 

3. Assist Town with improving regulations and permit approval process. 

4. Provide engineering design services for Town projects. (“Services”).  

 
Owner and Engineer further agree as follows: 
1.01 Basic Agreement and Period of Service 

A. Engineer shall provide or furnish the Services set forth in this Agreement. If authorized by Owner, or if 
required because of changes in the Project, Engineer shall furnish services in addition to those set forth 
above (“Additional Services”). 

B. Engineer shall complete its Services within the following specific time period: On an as needed basis when 
requested by Town. If no specific time period is indicated, Engineer shall complete its Services within a 
reasonable period of time. 

C. If, through no fault of Engineer, such periods of time or dates are changed, or the orderly and continuous 
progress of Engineer’s Services is impaired, or Engineer’s Services are delayed or suspended, then the time 
for completion of Engineer’s Services, and the rates and amounts of Engineer’s compensation, shall be 
adjusted equitably. 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 2 

2.01 Payment Procedures 

A. Invoices: Engineer shall prepare invoices in accordance with its standard invoicing practices and submit the 
invoices to Owner on a monthly basis. Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt. If Owner 
fails to make any payment due Engineer for Services, Additional Services, and expenses within 30 days 
after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then (1) the amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% 
per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day, and (2) in 
addition Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend Services under this 
Agreement until Engineer has been paid in full all amounts due for Services, Additional Services, expenses, 
and other related charges. Owner waives any and all claims against Engineer for any such suspension. 

B. Payment: As compensation for Engineer providing or furnishing Services and Additional Services, Owner 
shall pay Engineer as set forth in Paragraphs 2.01, 2.02 (Services), and 2.03 (Additional Services). If Owner 
disputes an invoice, either as to amount or entitlement, then Owner shall promptly advise Engineer in 
writing of the specific basis for doing so, may withhold only that portion so disputed, and must pay the 
undisputed portion. 

2.02 Basis of Payment—Hourly Rates Plus Reimbursable Expenses 

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Services as follows: 

1. An amount equal to the cumulative hours charged to the Project by each class of Engineer’s 
employees times standard hourly rates for each applicable billing class, plus reimbursement of 
expenses incurred in connection with providing the Services and Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if 
any. 

2. Engineer’s Standard Hourly Rates are attached as Appendix 1. 

2.03 Additional Services: For Additional Services, Owner shall pay Engineer an amount equal to the cumulative 

hours charged in providing the Additional Services by each class of Engineer’s employees, times standard hourly 
rates for each applicable billing class; plus reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with providing the 
Additional Services and Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if any. Engineer's standard hourly rates are attached as 
Appendix 1. 

3.01 Termination 

A. The obligation to continue performance under this Agreement may be terminated: 

1. For cause, 

a. By either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to 
perform in accordance with the Agreement’s terms through no fault of the terminating party. 
Failure to pay Engineer for its services is a substantial failure to perform and a basis for 
termination. 

b. By Engineer: 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 3 

1) upon seven days written notice if Owner demands that Engineer furnish or perform services 
contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed professional; or  

2) upon seven days written notice if the Engineer’s Services are delayed for more than 90 days 
for reasons beyond Engineer’s control, or as the result of the presence at the Site of 
undisclosed Constituents of Concern, as set forth in Paragraph 5.01.I. 

c. Engineer shall have no liability to Owner on account of a termination for cause by Engineer.  

d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate as a result of a substantial 
failure under Paragraph 3.01.A.1.a if the party receiving such notice begins, within seven days of 
receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure 
such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt of notice; provided, however, that if and to the 
extent such substantial failure cannot be reasonably cured within such 30 day period, and if such 
party has diligently attempted to cure the same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the 
same, then the cure period provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no case more than, 60 
days after the date of receipt of the notice. 

2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon Engineer's receipt of written notice from Owner. 

B. In the event of any termination under Paragraph 3.01, Engineer will be entitled to invoice Owner and to 
receive full payment for all Services and Additional Services performed or furnished in accordance with this 
Agreement, plus reimbursement of expenses incurred through the effective date of termination in 
connection with providing the Services and Additional Services, and Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if any. 

4.01 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries 

A. Owner and Engineer are hereby bound and the successors, executors, administrators, and legal 
representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the extent permitted by Paragraph 4.01.B the assigns of 
Owner and Engineer) are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the successors, 
executors, administrators, and legal representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all 
covenants, agreements, and obligations of this Agreement. 

B. Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest (including, but 
without limitation, money that is due or may become due) in this Agreement without the written consent 
of the other party, except to the extent that any assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated by law. 
Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will 
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 

C. Unless expressly provided otherwise, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, impose, or 
give rise to any duty owed by Owner or Engineer to any Constructor, other third-party individual or entity, 
or to any surety for or employee of any of them. All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this 
Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit of any 
other party. 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 4 

5.01 General Considerations 

A. The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or furnished by 
Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the subject 
profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. Engineer 
makes no warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with any 
services performed or furnished by Engineer. Subject to the foregoing standard of care, Engineer and its 
consultants may use or rely upon design elements and information ordinarily or customarily furnished by 
others, including, but not limited to, specialty contractors, manufacturers, suppliers, and the publishers of 
technical standards.  

B. Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any Constructor’s work, nor 
shall Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, or the safety precautions and programs 
incident thereto, for security or safety at the Project site, nor for any failure of a Constructor to comply 
with laws and regulations applicable to such Constructor’s furnishing and performing of its work. Engineer 
shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any Constructor. 

C. Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any 
Constructor’s failure to furnish and perform its work. 

D. Engineer’s opinions (if any) of probable construction cost are to be made on the basis of Engineer’s 
experience, qualifications, and general familiarity with the construction industry. However, because 
Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or 
over contractors’ methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, 
Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual construction cost will not vary from 
opinions of probable construction cost prepared by Engineer. If Owner requires greater assurance as to 
probable construction cost, then Owner agrees to obtain an independent cost estimate. 

E. Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the construction contract requirements, 
or any application, interpretation, clarification, or modification of the construction contract documents 
other than those made by Engineer or its consultants. 

F. All documents prepared or furnished by Engineer are instruments of service, and Engineer retains an 
ownership and property interest (including the copyright and the right of reuse) in such documents, 
whether or not the Project is completed. Owner shall have a limited license to use the documents on the 
Project, extensions of the Project, and for related uses of the Owner, subject to receipt by Engineer of full 
payment due and owing for all Services and Additional Services relating to preparation of the documents 
and subject to the following limitations: 

1. Owner acknowledges that such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for use on 
the Project unless completed by Engineer, or for use or reuse by Owner or others on extensions of the 
Project, on any other project, or for any other use or purpose, without written verification or 
adaptation by Engineer; 

2. any such use or reuse, or any modification of the documents, without written verification, completion, 
or adaptation by Engineer, as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, will be at Owner’s sole 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 5 

risk and without liability or legal exposure to Engineer or to its officers, directors, members, partners, 
agents, employees, and consultants; 

3. Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, 
agents, employees, and consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including 
attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from any use, reuse, or modification of the documents 
without written verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer; and 

4. such limited license to Owner shall not create any rights in third parties. 

G. Owner and Engineer may transmit, and shall accept, Project-related correspondence, documents, text, 
data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, or through 
access to a secure Project website, in accordance with a mutually agreeable protocol. 

H. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner and Engineer (1) waive against each other, and the other’s 
employees, officers, directors, members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims for 
or entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or in 
any way related to this Agreement or the Project, and (2) agree that Engineer’s total liability to Owner 
under this Agreement shall be limited to $100,000 or the total amount of compensation received by 
Engineer, whichever is greater. 

I. The parties acknowledge that Engineer’s Services do not include any services related to unknown or 
undisclosed Constituents of Concern.  If Engineer or any other party encounters, uncovers, or reveals an 
unknown or undisclosed Constituent of Concern, then Engineer may, at its option and without liability for 
consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of Services on the portion of the Project 
affected thereby until such portion of the Project is no longer affected, or terminate this Agreement for 
cause if it is not practical to continue providing Services. 

J. Owner and Engineer agree to negotiate each dispute between them in good faith during the 30 days after 
notice of dispute. If negotiations are unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, then the dispute shall be 
mediated.  If mediation is unsuccessful, then the parties may exercise their rights at law. 

K. This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.  

L. Engineer’s Services and Additional Services do not include: (1) serving as a “municipal advisor” for 
purposes of the registration requirements of Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and 
Consumer Protection Act (2010) or the municipal advisor registration rules issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission; (2) advising Owner, or any municipal entity or other person or entity, regarding 
municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal securities, including advice with respect to the 
structure, timing, terms, or other similar matters concerning such products or issuances; (3) providing 
surety bonding or insurance-related advice, recommendations, counseling, or research, or enforcement of 
construction insurance or surety bonding requirements; or (4) providing legal advice or representation. 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 6 

6.01 Total Agreement 

A. This Agreement (including any expressly incorporated attachments), constitutes the entire agreement 
between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings. This Agreement 
may only be amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly executed written instrument. 

7.01 Definitions 

A. Constructor—Any person or entity (not including the Engineer, its employees, agents, representatives, and 
consultants), performing or supporting construction activities relating to the Project, including but not 
limited to contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, Owner’s work forces, utility companies, construction 
managers, testing firms, shippers, and truckers, and the employees, agents, and representatives of any or 
all of them. 

B. Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive material, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), 
hazardous waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material of any nature whatsoever that is or 
becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to (a) the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. (“CERCLA”); (b) the Hazardous Materials 
Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §§5101 et seq.; (c) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 
§§6901 et seq. (“RCRA”); (d) the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§2601 et seq.; (e) the Clean 
Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq.; (f) the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.; or (g) any other federal, 
State, or local statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, resolution, code, order, or decree regulating, 
relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous 
waste, substance, or material. 

8.01 Attachments Included:  

A. Appendix 1, Engineer's Standard Hourly Rates  

B. Exhibit B, Owner’s Responsibilities 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of which is 
indicated on page 1. 

Owner:  Town of Mineral Springs  Engineer:  Rosenau Engineering, PLLC 
   
By:   By:   

Print name:   Print name:  Jonathan S. Rosenau 
Title:    Title: Managing Member 

Date Signed:    Date Signed:   

   
 Engineer License or Firm's Certificate No. (if required):  

P-1789 
 State of: North Carolina 

   
Address for Owner’s receipt of notices:  Address for Engineer’s receipt of notices: 
   
P.O. box 600  4108 St. Joseph Drive 

Mineral Springs, NC  28108  Indian Trail, NC  28079 

msvickybrooks@aol.com    jonrosenau@rosenauengineering.com 

  
 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                        Page 1 

This is Appendix 1, Engineer’s Standard Hourly 
Rates, referred to in and part of the Short Form 
of Agreement between Owner and Engineer for 
Professional Services dated July 10, 2024. 

 
Engineer’s Standard Hourly Rates  

 
A. Standard Hourly Rates: 

1. Standard Hourly Rates are set forth in this Appendix 1 and include salaries and wages paid to 
personnel in each billing class plus the cost of customary and statutory benefits, general and 
administrative overhead, non-project operating costs, and operating margin or profit. 

2. The Standard Hourly Rates apply only as specified in Paragraphs 2.01, 2.02, and 2.03, and are 
subject to annual review and adjustment. 

B. Schedule of Hourly Rates: 
Please refer to chart below to determine rates for the next 4 years. Hourly rates will increase 5% 
per year for years beyond those listed in the chart. 
 

Year Billing Class Rate 

2024 Professional Engineer $145.00/hour 

2025 Professional Engineer $152.00/hour 

2026 Professional Engineer $160.00/hour 

2027 Professional Engineer $168.00/hour 

 
 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 1 

SHORT FORM OF AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of July 10, 2024 (“Effective Date”) between Town of Mineral Springs 
(“Owner”) and Rosenau Engineering, PLLC, a North Carolina Professional Limited Liability Company 
(“Engineer”). 
 
Owner’s Project, of which Engineer’s services under this Agreement are a part, is generally identified as 
follows: Town of Mineral Springs – Town Engineer Consulting Services (“Project”). 
 
Engineer’s services under this Agreement are generally identified as follows: Engineer shall provide  
Civil Engineering Consulting Services as needed by the Town of Mineral Springs located in Union County, 
North Carolina.  
 
Civil Engineering Consulting Services may include the following: 
 

1. Construction Document and Permit Reviews for projects submitted to Town for approval. This 

would likely include: 

a. Review of documents submitted by applicant 

b. Review Town regulations 

c. Provide Town and Applicant with feedback/markups/comments based upon Town 

regulations 

2. Provide guidance to Town regarding land development. 

3. Assist Town with improving regulations and permit approval process. 

4. Provide engineering design services for Town projects. (“Services”).  

 
Owner and Engineer further agree as follows: 
1.01 Basic Agreement and Period of Service 

A. Engineer shall provide or furnish the Services set forth in this Agreement. If authorized by Owner, or if 
required because of changes in the Project, Engineer shall furnish services in addition to those set forth 
above (“Additional Services”). 

B. Engineer shall complete its Services within the following specific time period: On an as needed basis when 
requested by Town. If no specific time period is indicated, Engineer shall complete its Services within a 
reasonable period of time. 

C. If, through no fault of Engineer, such periods of time or dates are changed, or the orderly and continuous 
progress of Engineer’s Services is impaired, or Engineer’s Services are delayed or suspended, then the time 
for completion of Engineer’s Services, and the rates and amounts of Engineer’s compensation, shall be 
adjusted equitably. 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 2 

2.01 Payment Procedures 

A. Invoices: Engineer shall prepare invoices in accordance with its standard invoicing practices and submit the 
invoices to Owner on a monthly basis. Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt. If Owner 
fails to make any payment due Engineer for Services, Additional Services, and expenses within 30 days 
after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then (1) the amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% 
per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day, and (2) in 
addition Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend Services under this 
Agreement until Engineer has been paid in full all amounts due for Services, Additional Services, expenses, 
and other related charges. Owner waives any and all claims against Engineer for any such suspension. 

B. Payment: As compensation for Engineer providing or furnishing Services and Additional Services, Owner 
shall pay Engineer as set forth in Paragraphs 2.01, 2.02 (Services), and 2.03 (Additional Services). If Owner 
disputes an invoice, either as to amount or entitlement, then Owner shall promptly advise Engineer in 
writing of the specific basis for doing so, may withhold only that portion so disputed, and must pay the 
undisputed portion. 

2.02 Basis of Payment—Hourly Rates Plus Reimbursable Expenses 

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Services as follows: 

1. An amount equal to the cumulative hours charged to the Project by each class of Engineer’s 
employees times standard hourly rates for each applicable billing class, plus reimbursement of 
expenses incurred in connection with providing the Services and Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if 
any. 

2. Engineer’s Standard Hourly Rates are attached as Appendix 1. 

2.03 Additional Services: For Additional Services, Owner shall pay Engineer an amount equal to the cumulative 

hours charged in providing the Additional Services by each class of Engineer’s employees, times standard hourly 
rates for each applicable billing class; plus reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with providing the 
Additional Services and Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if any. Engineer's standard hourly rates are attached as 
Appendix 1. 

3.01 Termination 

A. The obligation to continue performance under this Agreement may be terminated: 

1. For cause, 

a. By either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to 
perform in accordance with the Agreement’s terms through no fault of the terminating party. 
Failure to pay Engineer for its services is a substantial failure to perform and a basis for 
termination. 

b. By Engineer: 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 3 

1) upon seven days written notice if Owner demands that Engineer furnish or perform services 
contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed professional; or  

2) upon seven days written notice if the Engineer’s Services are delayed for more than 90 days 
for reasons beyond Engineer’s control, or as the result of the presence at the Site of 
undisclosed Constituents of Concern, as set forth in Paragraph 5.01.I. 

c. Engineer shall have no liability to Owner on account of a termination for cause by Engineer.  

d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate as a result of a substantial 
failure under Paragraph 3.01.A.1.a if the party receiving such notice begins, within seven days of 
receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure 
such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt of notice; provided, however, that if and to the 
extent such substantial failure cannot be reasonably cured within such 30 day period, and if such 
party has diligently attempted to cure the same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the 
same, then the cure period provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no case more than, 60 
days after the date of receipt of the notice. 

2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon Engineer's receipt of written notice from Owner. 

B. In the event of any termination under Paragraph 3.01, Engineer will be entitled to invoice Owner and to 
receive full payment for all Services and Additional Services performed or furnished in accordance with this 
Agreement, plus reimbursement of expenses incurred through the effective date of termination in 
connection with providing the Services and Additional Services, and Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if any. 

4.01 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries 

A. Owner and Engineer are hereby bound and the successors, executors, administrators, and legal 
representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the extent permitted by Paragraph 4.01.B the assigns of 
Owner and Engineer) are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the successors, 
executors, administrators, and legal representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all 
covenants, agreements, and obligations of this Agreement. 

B. Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest (including, but 
without limitation, money that is due or may become due) in this Agreement without the written consent 
of the other party, except to the extent that any assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated by law. 
Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will 
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 

C. Unless expressly provided otherwise, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, impose, or 
give rise to any duty owed by Owner or Engineer to any Constructor, other third-party individual or entity, 
or to any surety for or employee of any of them. All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this 
Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit of any 
other party. 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 4 

5.01 General Considerations 

A. The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or furnished by 
Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the subject 
profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. Engineer 
makes no warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with any 
services performed or furnished by Engineer. Subject to the foregoing standard of care, Engineer and its 
consultants may use or rely upon design elements and information ordinarily or customarily furnished by 
others, including, but not limited to, specialty contractors, manufacturers, suppliers, and the publishers of 
technical standards.  

B. Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any Constructor’s work, nor 
shall Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, or the safety precautions and programs 
incident thereto, for security or safety at the Project site, nor for any failure of a Constructor to comply 
with laws and regulations applicable to such Constructor’s furnishing and performing of its work. Engineer 
shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any Constructor. 

C. Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any 
Constructor’s failure to furnish and perform its work. 

D. Engineer’s opinions (if any) of probable construction cost are to be made on the basis of Engineer’s 
experience, qualifications, and general familiarity with the construction industry. However, because 
Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or 
over contractors’ methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, 
Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual construction cost will not vary from 
opinions of probable construction cost prepared by Engineer. If Owner requires greater assurance as to 
probable construction cost, then Owner agrees to obtain an independent cost estimate. 

E. Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the construction contract requirements, 
or any application, interpretation, clarification, or modification of the construction contract documents 
other than those made by Engineer or its consultants. 

F. All documents prepared or furnished by Engineer are instruments of service, and Engineer retains an 
ownership and property interest (including the copyright and the right of reuse) in such documents, 
whether or not the Project is completed. Owner shall have a limited license to use the documents on the 
Project, extensions of the Project, and for related uses of the Owner, subject to receipt by Engineer of full 
payment due and owing for all Services and Additional Services relating to preparation of the documents 
and subject to the following limitations: 

1. Owner acknowledges that such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for use on 
the Project unless completed by Engineer, or for use or reuse by Owner or others on extensions of the 
Project, on any other project, or for any other use or purpose, without written verification or 
adaptation by Engineer; 

2. any such use or reuse, or any modification of the documents, without written verification, completion, 
or adaptation by Engineer, as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, will be at Owner’s sole 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 5 

risk and without liability or legal exposure to Engineer or to its officers, directors, members, partners, 
agents, employees, and consultants; 

3. Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, 
agents, employees, and consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including 
attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from any use, reuse, or modification of the documents 
without written verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer; and 

4. such limited license to Owner shall not create any rights in third parties. 

G. Owner and Engineer may transmit, and shall accept, Project-related correspondence, documents, text, 
data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, or through 
access to a secure Project website, in accordance with a mutually agreeable protocol. 

H. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner and Engineer (1) waive against each other, and the other’s 
employees, officers, directors, members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims for 
or entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or in 
any way related to this Agreement or the Project, and (2) agree that Engineer’s total liability to Owner 
under this Agreement shall be limited to $100,000 or the total amount of compensation received by 
Engineer, whichever is greater. 

I. The parties acknowledge that Engineer’s Services do not include any services related to unknown or 
undisclosed Constituents of Concern.  If Engineer or any other party encounters, uncovers, or reveals an 
unknown or undisclosed Constituent of Concern, then Engineer may, at its option and without liability for 
consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of Services on the portion of the Project 
affected thereby until such portion of the Project is no longer affected, or terminate this Agreement for 
cause if it is not practical to continue providing Services. 

J. Owner and Engineer agree to negotiate each dispute between them in good faith during the 30 days after 
notice of dispute. If negotiations are unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, then the dispute shall be 
mediated.  If mediation is unsuccessful, then the parties may exercise their rights at law. 

K. This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.  

L. Engineer’s Services and Additional Services do not include: (1) serving as a “municipal advisor” for 
purposes of the registration requirements of Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and 
Consumer Protection Act (2010) or the municipal advisor registration rules issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission; (2) advising Owner, or any municipal entity or other person or entity, regarding 
municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal securities, including advice with respect to the 
structure, timing, terms, or other similar matters concerning such products or issuances; (3) providing 
surety bonding or insurance-related advice, recommendations, counseling, or research, or enforcement of 
construction insurance or surety bonding requirements; or (4) providing legal advice or representation. 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 6 

6.01 Total Agreement 

A. This Agreement (including any expressly incorporated attachments), constitutes the entire agreement 
between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings. This Agreement 
may only be amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly executed written instrument. 

7.01 Definitions 

A. Constructor—Any person or entity (not including the Engineer, its employees, agents, representatives, and 
consultants), performing or supporting construction activities relating to the Project, including but not 
limited to contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, Owner’s work forces, utility companies, construction 
managers, testing firms, shippers, and truckers, and the employees, agents, and representatives of any or 
all of them. 

B. Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive material, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), 
hazardous waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material of any nature whatsoever that is or 
becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to (a) the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. (“CERCLA”); (b) the Hazardous Materials 
Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §§5101 et seq.; (c) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 
§§6901 et seq. (“RCRA”); (d) the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§2601 et seq.; (e) the Clean 
Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq.; (f) the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.; or (g) any other federal, 
State, or local statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, resolution, code, order, or decree regulating, 
relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous 
waste, substance, or material. 

8.01 Attachments Included:  

A. Appendix 1, Engineer's Standard Hourly Rates  

B. Exhibit B, Owner’s Responsibilities 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

 
EJCDC® E-520, Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright ©2015 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.   

Page 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of which is 
indicated on page 1. 

Owner:  Town of Mineral Springs  Engineer:  Rosenau Engineering, PLLC 
   
By:   By:   

Print name:   Print name:  Jonathan S. Rosenau 
Title:    Title: Managing Member 

Date Signed:    Date Signed:   

   
 Engineer License or Firm's Certificate No. (if required):  

P-1789 
 State of: North Carolina 

   
Address for Owner’s receipt of notices:  Address for Engineer’s receipt of notices: 
   
P.O. box 600  4108 St. Joseph Drive 

Mineral Springs, NC  28108  Indian Trail, NC  28079 

msvickybrooks@aol.com    jonrosenau@rosenauengineering.com 

  
 



Rosenau Engineering Project No. 24137 
July 10, 2024 
 

Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                        Page 1 

This is Appendix 1, Engineer’s Standard Hourly 
Rates, referred to in and part of the Short Form 
of Agreement between Owner and Engineer for 
Professional Services dated July 10, 2024. 

 
Engineer’s Standard Hourly Rates  

 
A. Standard Hourly Rates: 

1. Standard Hourly Rates are set forth in this Appendix 1 and include salaries and wages paid to 
personnel in each billing class plus the cost of customary and statutory benefits, general and 
administrative overhead, non-project operating costs, and operating margin or profit. 

2. The Standard Hourly Rates apply only as specified in Paragraphs 2.01, 2.02, and 2.03, and are 
subject to annual review and adjustment. 

B. Schedule of Hourly Rates: 
Please refer to chart below to determine rates for the next 4 years. Hourly rates will increase 5% 
per year for years beyond those listed in the chart. 
 

Year Billing Class Rate 

2024 Professional Engineer $145.00/hour 

2025 Professional Engineer $152.00/hour 

2026 Professional Engineer $160.00/hour 

2027 Professional Engineer $168.00/hour 

 
 


	080824_tca
	071124_tcmd
	240808_County_Tax_Report_Agenda_Item
	Finance_Report_2406_MSPDF
	080824 MEMO rezoning legislative public hearing
	ZMA 24-02
	Town of Mineral Springs Rezoning 06019002_RA20 to GB
	Certificate of Mailing - Rezoning 080824
	Statement of Consistency PB 072324
	O-2024-01  ZMA-2024-02
	080824 MEMO to landscaping bids
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL for LANDSCAPING - July 2024
	Blackmon's Landscaping, LLC Bid 2024.07.30
	Carolina Lawn Care Landscaping Bid 2024.07.30
	240808_Audit_Contract_Agenda_Item
	Mineral Springs audit engagement letter 6.30.24.pdf (p.1-5)
	Mineral Springs Audit contract 2024 AGENDA.pdf (p.6-14)

	080824 MEMO to engineering agreement
	Town of Mineral Springs - Engineering Contract 2024



